TEESSIDE POWER LIMITED

RESPONSE TO “The Balancing and Settlement Code under BETTA – Ofgem DTI Consultation on a BSC to apply throughout GB” published December 2002

This note presents the views of Teesside Power Limited, TPL, on the matters set out in the December 2002 Ofgem/DTI Consultation Paper: “The Balancing and Settlement Code under BETTA”. It covers both the specific questions on which views have been invited and more general matters raised in the text.

Summary

                                                                                                                                                                    TPL understands the Ofgem/DTI desire to introduce standardised electricity trading arrangements throughout Great Britain. TPL’s general position on the proposed changes is that in developing the new arrangements, Ofgem/DTI should minimise the impact of changes on market participants in England and Wales. On this basis, TPL generally supports the proposal to utilise the documentation developed for the England and Wales market for the GB market. 

In general, the document deals only with matters at the “policy” level. We will clearly wish to provide further comments when more details of the arrangements have been developed. 


The Proposals

1. The legal framework for the GB BSC

In the interests of minimising disruption to the current commercial arrangements operating in England and Wales, TPL supports the proposal that the GB System Operator, expected to be NGC, should retain the obligation to have in force a BSC and that the existing BSC should form the basis of the GB BSC. 

2. Consideration of the application of the England and Wales BSC to GB
Generic Changes

Whilst the changes proposed appear sensible, we would wish to reserve our position until such time as the changes to the E&W BSC have been drafted and issued for consultation.


Parties and Participation 

On the basis that the BSC is essentially a code for those who use the system for electricity trading, we see no a priori reason why the system owner(s) need to be a party to the agreement.


Governing law and general legal conditions

In the interest of minimising disruption to the present arrangements, we concur with the proposals that the governing law for GB BSC should be English Law and that the jurisdiction should be exclusively England and Wales courts.


Governance
TPL would wish to comment on the existing governance arrangements under this heading.

TPL has consistently been of the view that the present governance arrangements for the BSC are inadequate in that they provide for no appeal against decisions by the Authority. In the light of experience, the provisions for progressing proposed modifications to the BSC, including both the Panel assessment procedures and the formal consultation process have worked well, allowing a for a full debate involving all market participants. The concern remains, however, that following this open evaluation process, the final decision on whether to adopt the modification, or any alternate modification, rests with the Authority and that there is no scope for an appeal of the Authority decision. 

We suggest that a further appeal stage should be introduced within the GB BSC whereby, in the circumstance where the decision by the Panel, which has a broad representation of market participants, is not accepted by the Authority, any BSC signatory has the right to appeal that decision to a higher authority, the obvious candidate being the Secretary of State. We consider that this would improve the present governance arrangements and be consistent with good regulatory practice.


Cost Recovery

We consider that, in the event that BETTA takes effect before 1st April 2005, Scottish Parties will benefit from the development of the original NETA arrangements and hence, it is appropriate for them to meet a proportion of the original costs through their BSC charges.


Interconnectors

TPL supports the proposal to use the existing Interconnector rules in the GB BSC: this represents a pragmatic approach to a complex issue. If, in the light of experience, there are deficiencies identified with this approach following implementation of BETTA, these can be addressed through the modification procedures in the BSC.


Transmission Losses

Given the complexities associated with this matter as identified in the document, TPL welcomes the initiative from the DTI to consult separately on this specific issue. We will respond fully to the issue raised in that document. 

As regards the matters raised in the Ofgem/DTI consultation document:

· the issue of price comparison arose, and was dealt with, when NETA was implemented in England and Wales and we see no reason why it should be addressed when new arrangements are introduced in Scotland;

· in view of the complex issues raised in paragraph 5.84 regarding geographical variations and changes which will inevitable result from new arrangements being introduced, we suggest that a simple approach to losses needs to be adopted in the interest of the development of a liquid trading market in Scotland;

· we are unaware of any evidence that the sharing of the losses on the system on a pro-rate basis between all generation and demand restricts or inhibits competition. Hence, subject to further consideration of whether it is appropriate to share losses incurred on the 132kV system in Scotland, which would be inconsistent with the allocation of such losses in England and Wales, we would favour a simple sharing approach for the GB system.

Finally, we consider that the comments in paragraph 5.86 and the recent decision by the Authority to reject the recommendation by the BSC Panel substantiate our proposal above to introduce an appeal mechanism within the GB BSC governance arrangements.


Conclusions
TPL recognises the logic behind Ofgem & the DTI seeking to extend the trading arrangements which operate in England and Wales to the whole of Great Britain. As an England and Wales generator, TPL’s main concern is that Ofgem/DTI are fully aware of the need to minimise disruption to its commercial operation and to avoid additional costs, which inevitably result from changes to industry agreements and codes, particularly where any bilateral agreements are involved. 

Given the significance of the changes proposed, TPL considers it appropriate at the same time to review the present governance arrangements associated with the BSC modification provisions, particularly as regards the introduction within the BSC of a process for appeal, in defined circumstances, of Authority decisions. We have provided some initial thoughts on what might be involved but would welcome the opportunity to provide further comments as the BETTA development proceeds.
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